

COUNCIL MEETING

MINUTES

Wednesday 22 September 2021

at 4:00 PM

by videoconference

Next Council Meeting: 27 October 2021



COLAC OTWAY SHIRE COUNCIL MEETING

Wednesday 22 September 2021

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1	Declaration of Opening of Meeting				
2	Present				
3	Apologies and Leaves of Absence				
4	Welcome and Acknowledgement of Country				
5	Question Time				
6	Tabling of Responses to Questions Taken On Notice at Previous Meeting1				
7	Petitions / Joint Letters1				
8	Decla	arations of Interest	12		
9	Confirmation of Minutes				
10	10 Officer Reports1				
	10.1	Domestic Animal Management Plan - Pre Consultative Report	13		
	10.2	Erosion Management Overlay Review	14		
	10.3	Key and Essential Worker Housing Crisis	15		
	10.4	City Deal Projects - Clause 52.30 'State projects' Planning Approval Pathway	16		
	10.5	Contract 2127 - Construct Only - Morris Access Landslip Remediation	17		
	10.6	Contract 2126 - Concrete Footpath Construction and Repair Services	18		
	10.7	Audit and Risk Committee - Biannual Audit and Risk Report	19		
	10.8	Audit and Risk Committee Minutes - 11 August 2021	20		
	10.9	S6 Instrument of Delegation - Council to Members of Council Staff	21		
	10.10	Notice of Motion - Christmas Decorations	22		
	10.11	Report of Informal Meetings of Councillors	23		

COLAC OTWAY SHIRE COUNCIL MEETING

MINUTES of the *COUNCIL MEETING OF THE COLAC OTWAY SHIRE COUNCIL* held by videoconference on Wednesday 22 September 2021 at 4:00 PM.

MINUTES

1 DECLARATION OF OPENING OF MEETING

OPENING PRAYER

Almighty God, we seek your blessing and guidance in our deliberations on behalf of the people of the Colac Otway Shire. Enable this Council's decisions to be those that contribute to the true welfare and betterment of our community.

AMEN

2 PRESENT

Cr Kate Hanson (Mayor)
Cr Graham Costin (Deputy Mayor)
Cr Jamie Bell
Cr Stephen Hart
Cr Joe McCracken
Cr Chris Potter
Cr Margaret White

Anne Howard, Chief Executive Officer
Errol Lawrence, General Manager, Corporate Services
Tony McGann, General Manager, Environment & Infrastructure
Doug McNeill, Acting General Manager, Development & Community Services
Marlo Emmitt, Manager, Governance & Communications
Lyndal McLean, Governance Coordinator
Simon Clarke, Strategic Planning & Major Projects Coordinator
James Myatt, Manager, Economy & Business Enterprises
Madeleine Bisits, Manager, Assets & Project Delivery
Dora Novak, Acting Manager, Environment & Community Safety
Fiona Maw, Economic Development and Tourism Coordinator
Kristy Cochrane, Project Delivery Coordinator
Graeme Murphy, Compliance Coordinator

3 APOLOGIES AND LEAVES OF ABSENCE

Nil

4 WELCOME AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF COUNTRY

Colac Otway Shire acknowledges the original custodians and law makers of this land, their elders past, present and emerging and welcomes any descendants here today.

RECORDING AND PUBLICATION OF MEETINGS

Please note: This Council meeting was livestreamed with the exception of matters identified as confidential items. This included the public participation sections of the meetings.

As soon as practicable following the open Council meeting, the recording of the livestream will be accessible on Council's website. Recordings are also made to facilitate the preparation of the minutes of open Council and Committee meetings and to ensure their accuracy. Recordings will be retained by Council for a period of four years.

As stated in the Governance Rules, other than an official Council recording, no video or audio recording of proceedings of Council Meetings will be permitted without specific approval by resolution of the relevant Council Meeting.

5 QUESTION TIME

QUESTIONS RECEIVED IN WRITING PRIOR TO THE MEETING

James Judd, Colac

1. When will the Colac Otway Shire Council review the shocking situation in the Colac region of public toilets with none provided west of Gellibrand Street in Colac proper, plus major developments in Colac west of Corangamite Street and none in Colac West? With the only two sites open 24 hours most days in the entire Colac region at Gellibrand Street and east of Barongarook Creek. Plus most businesses, if they allow people to use their toilets, have a general requirement you must be a customer of theirs and only when open for business.

Response from General Manager, Environment & Infrastructure

Council provides public toilets west of Gellibrand Street within the COPACC foyer. These facilities are available to any member of the public during opening hours. A privately managed public toilet is also located at the rear of the Woolworths carpark, that is open during the day, 7 days a week. Toilets are also available to members of the public without restriction west of Gellibrand Street at McDonalds and KFC. There is little demand for public toilets outside of business hours within central Colac, however the Memorial Square toilets are available 24hours a day, 7 days a week to service the community after hours.

2. How does the Colac Otway Shire Council justify demanding that tenders are only lodged online when this Shire is in one of the worst areas in Victoria for online communications, when online is well known for dropping out multiple times a day and not available to many for a day at a time over large areas in this Shire; or, is this just another attempt to restrict who can lodge a tender with many now working from home and many studies only online the capacity to use this system often cannot meet the demand?

Response from General Manager, Corporate Services

Moving to receiving electronic submissions has created internal efficiencies and increased probity in the way Council undertakes it tenders and expressions of interests. Tenders are generally

advertised for a four-week period to ensure contractors and suppliers have sufficient time to complete their tender and lodge it electronically. Since introducing electronic submissions back in January of this year, Council, to date, has not received any complaints from contractors or suppliers with the removal of the physical tender box.

3. Does any public toilet now exist in this Shire that does not demand use of the QR code if to use them? If public use is restricted to certain people who can register via the QR code it is not public but restricted use only. With very few public toilets in this entire Shire plus only some mobile phones can register the QR code.

Response from General Manager, Environment & Infrastructure

QR code signs displayed at public toilets do not restrict use. State Government legislation now requires that Service Victoria QR Codes are displayed at every public entrance to indoor and outdoor spaces and at points of sale. However, it is only mandatory to check in to supermarkets, retail and food and drink outlets. Council encourages people using public toilet facilities to check in using the QR code, to support the State Government's contact tracing efforts and the health of our community, however it is not mandatory to do so. QR codes are currently placed only at Colac Otway Shire's high use public toilets.

4. Since the Colac Otway Shire Council now requires people to register by using the QR code to use Council's public toilets why do you not demand that toilet cleaners use a mask when cleaning toilets? It is a disgrace that the public are ordered to use a mask outside of home yet some who perform work in public places for the Council are not doing the same. As a body that hires people to provide a service is also responsible to see that the law is followed or is subject to being fined for ignoring the law.

Response from General Manager, Environment & Infrastructure

The Shire does require the current cleaning contractors to wear masks as a part of the current Public Health Order, unless they have a lawful reason not to wear a facemask. Council Officers have not witnessed any breach of this Order nor has this concern been raised directly with Council, so thank you for bringing it to our attention. Council has monthly performance management meetings with the Council Contractor where items identified are raised and addressed.

5. Since there are laws and excuses used to prohibit people doing something, how does the Colac Otway Shire Council stand if it demands that people register via use of the QR code then refuses any access to urgent needed public toilets run by the Council when refusal can be a deliberate denial of the anti-discrimination laws that also carry a very heavy fine if broken?

Response from General Manager, Environment & Infrastructure

As explained in an answer to an earlier question the QR Code is provided to assist in contact tracing but the use of it in public toilet facilities is not mandatory. Hence there are no plans to restrict access to public toilets.

Jeff Cooke, Colac

1. Given that the much publicised achievement of reaching carbon neutral status for Council operations is an important first step in achieving net zero emissions for the whole Colac Otway community, can Council detail when and how the final audit of the carbon neutral status will be made and how the results will be made public?

Response from General Manager, Environment & Infrastructure

Council uses the services of an independent environmental scorekeeper to track its emissions. The final emissions inventory for 2020-21 has recently been completed and will be published in Council's annual report. As part of Council's carbon neutral claim for 2020-21, Council is currently undertaking a third-party emissions inventory verification according to national standards prior to securing the required carbon offsets for Council's net-zero carbon claim for 2020-21.

Tim Cobb, Skenes Creek

1. The GORA has taken over management of the commercial campgrounds at Skenes Creek and Marengo which were formerly leased out. Does this mean that the Shire will forego the rates on these two campgrounds in future? What is the cost to the Shire in 2021-22 of the rates foregone?

Response from General Manager, Corporate Services

Council's Rates department has received no formal advice as yet regarding the custodianship of the land that contains the Skenes Creek and Marengo caravan parks. As such the rateable status of both properties has not yet been considered. At present, both caravan parks are rateable and were levied \$7,345.40 and \$8,195.90 respectively for 2021-22.

2. What is Council's contribution to the GORA for provision and maintenance of facilities in 2021-22?

Response from General Manager, Environment & Infrastructure

Council contributes \$6,373 (GST exclusive) to GORCAPA each year for the maintenance of the Apollo Bay Recreation Reserve. This annual allocation increases by CPI each year.

In addition to this amount Council contributes directly to the provision of services that could reasonably be thought of as being related to coastal recreation and tourism services. These include assisting with the provision of temporary toilets at Kennett River and Apollo Bay and assisting with the provision of surf lifesaving services at Kennett River.

Julie Harris, Apollo Bay

 At the August Ordinary Council Meeting I observed a councillor submit an alternative motion to council before an agenda item with recommendations from council officers was able to be submitted for discussion.

From a ratepayer's perspective this practice, irrespective of the issue/agenda item, demonstrates several undesirable behaviours, which councillors have agreed "they do not want to see." Appendix 3 of the Councillor's Code of Conduct.

It demonstrates "closed mindedness to other people's opinions", in this case to the council officers who have had to prepare well researched and evidenced-based briefing notes to support their recommendation.

It also demonstrates "manipulativeness and game playing". The councillor moving the alternative motion and seconder appear to seek to have the first, longest and last voice on the issue. If no advantage is sought by submitting an alternative motion BEFORE an original recommendation, then there should be no issue with a councillor waiting until the debate phase of the original recommendation to submit their alternative motion. It is important all voices are heard without political advantage seeking/game playing.

In order to "support and foster good working relationships", improve transparency for ratepayers and take positive steps to improve its 58% council satisfaction rating (a key action highlighted in its draft council plan), will the chair no longer allow councillors to submit alternative motions BEFORE an original motion/councillor recommendation in future meetings?

Response from Manager Governance & Communications

The Governance Rules do not oblige Council or Delegated Committees to adopt officer recommendations, nor debate or discuss them. There is no motion on the table until a Councillor moves it and it is seconded. Any Councillor may move an alternative position to that put forward by officers, which it did in this instance. The motion was seconded, and put and carried by the majority of Councillors.

2. At the August Ordinary Council Meeting I observed the discussion relating to founding membership of the Barwon South West Climate Alliance. I will declare that I am disappointed in the ultimate decision made by council not to become a founding member, however I am more concerned by the lack of evidence provided by the councillors who proposed and seconded the alternative motion. The council officer's recommendation was supported by well-researched briefing notes, however, there appeared to be no evidence supplied to back-up the alternative motion.

Did the councillor's contact any other Victoria councils or greenhouse alliances to gather evidence to support their arguments NOT to join the Barwon South West Climate Alliance? Did they visit the Victorian Greenhouse Alliances Web Page http://www.victoriangreenhousealliances.org/ for further information, including the report on the greenhouse alliances downloadable on the front page? Did councillors contact the G21 Alliance to ask if they were interested/prepared to provide an alternative to the BSW Climate Alliance?

It is very important for all councillors to have a voice during meetings, however, from a ratepayer's perspective it is important for reasons of transparency that councillors must provide evidence, at least equal to that of council officers, if they are proposing alternative motions that directly oppose council officer recommendations.

In future, will the chair ask councillors to provide evidence to support their alternative motions, if they are substantially different to, or in opposition to, recommendations put forward by council officers?

Response from Manager Governance & Communications

There is no requirement for a Councillor to provide 'evidence' to support their motion where it differs from an officer's recommendation. If a Councillor wishes to move a motion, alternative to

the officer recommendation in the report, then they are entitled to do so. In this instance, the decision made by the majority of Councillors was to support the alternative.

Nasser Kotb, Forrest

- Council has rejected the opportunity to become a founding member of the "Barwon South West Climate Alliance" to pursue, with another ten councils, climate resilience for their communities. Moreover, the rejection was done through an "alternative!" motion.
 - 1.1 Would the Council explain the reasoning to go against logic, Council plans and community support for tackling climate change and addressing environmental concerns (Colac Otway Community Vision 2050 community engagement survey)?

Response from General Manager, Environment & Infrastructure

Council remains committed to tackle climate change. It's decision not to become a founding member of the Climate Alliance at this stage means that Council is letting others take a lead during this phase, but does not set a position regarding membership with the alliance. Council looks forward to considering membership of the Barwon South West Climate Alliance at an appropriate time.

1.2 Would the Council investigate this wasteful behaviour of disregarding Council officers' recommendations and not even discussing them?

Response from Manager Governance & Communications

The Governance Rules do not oblige Council or Delegated Committees to adopt officer recommendations, nor debate or discuss them. Any Councillor may move an alternative position to that put forward by officers, which it did in this instance. The motion was seconded, and put and carried by the majority of Councillors.

1.3 Some Councillors usage of "alternative motion" facility borders on political games. Would the Council formally investigate this possible breach of LGA 2020 by governance and ethics committee?

Response from Manager Governance & Communications

As discussed in the response to question 1.2, no investigation is warranted as Council has not breached its Governance Rules or the *Local Government Act 2020*.

- 2. There has been many statements by Councillors and officers recently bragging about "Colac Otway Shire is the first rural municipality in Victoria to achieve 'Carbon Neutrality' across its operations, among other achievements" (alternative motion August 2021 Council meeting).
 - 2.1 Would the Council provide data (rather than political narrative) to show, in numbers, the actual carbon emissions reduction and areas of reduction since 2013?

Response from General Manager, Environment & Infrastructure

Council's emissions summary has been published in the Annual Report each year as well as descriptions of all the major emissions reduction projects and initiatives undertaken by Council.

2.2 When was the last "carbon emission" audit conducted by Council?

Response from General Manager, Environment & Infrastructure

Council uses the services of an independent environmental scorekeeper to track its emissions. As part of Council's carbon neutral claim for 2020-2021, Council is currently undertaking an emissions inventory verification according to national standards.

2.3 Why did the Council decide to spend money on planting trees in a never never land rather than within the Shire boundaries?

Response from General Manager, Environment & Infrastructure

Accredited carbon emissions offsetting (revegetation) programs are not currently available within Council's municipal boundary. Council will continue to explore, investigate and advocate for future options and opportunities for local offsetting through revegetation.

2.4 Has the Council considered instituting an action plan for carbon neutral Colac Otway Shire?

Response from General Manager, Environment & Infrastructure

In addition, in 2013, Council developed a Carbon Neutral Roadmap to provide guidance on the responsible actions it should take to reduce its emissions. Following the recommendations in that roadmap has placed Council in the position it is in today.

- 3. Seaweed cultivation in Australia is a reality. The Australian Seaweed Institute is the driving force behind the sustainable and climate-positive seaweed industry in Australia. There are two land-based operations for Ulva spp. cultivation in Shoalhaven, NSW (Venus Shell Systems) and Ayr, QLD (Pacific Biotechnology). Also, two licences were granted in January 2021 to allow a commercial seaweed farm to be established on South Australia's Yorke Peninsula. The Australian Sustainable Seaweed Alliance (ASSA) was launched in July 2021 as the peak body to help accelerate industry growth.
 - 3.1 Would the Council explore the potential and possibilities of "seaweed cultivation/farming" in the Shire's coastal areas?

Response from General Manager, Environment & Infrastructure

Council is pleased to learn more about the benefits of seaweed farming and would certainly be interested in supporting the concept with suitable organisations who are in the business of turning these ideas into reality.

3.2 Would the Council consider a strategic partnership with FutureFeed to promote decreasing methane production from cattle in the Shire as a component of a strategy to reach Shirewide carbon neutrality?

Response from General Manager, Environment & Infrastructure

Council is open to exploring collaborations and/or providing support to any programs, projects or organisations that could assist in reducing Colac Otway's community emissions. To date, FutureFeed has not approached Council with a request to collaborate or partner.

- 4. The Barwon South West Community Power Hub (BSW-CPH) is a collective of passionate community groups working together to deliver community energy projects that will reduce greenhouse gas emissions, contribute to achieving renewable energy targets and bring local economic benefits to a range of diverse communities and involving stakeholders from the nine LGAs across the region that will include community energy groups, local government representatives, statutory authorities, business associations, regional development leaders, education and technical bodies, community development agencies and skilled and passionate individuals.
 - 4.1 Would the Council consider strategic partnership with BSW-CPH?

Response from General Manager, Environment & Infrastructure

Council is open to exploring collaborations and/or providing support to any programs, projects or organisations that could assist in reducing Colac Otway's community emissions and assist in transitioning to a renewable energy future.

Council would welcome the opportunity to understand the work of the Barwon South West Community Power Hub group and how their goals and projects might align with Council's.

4.2 Would the Council include the stated objectives of BSW-CPH in the Council's strategic plans?

Response from General Manager, Environment & Infrastructure

The BSW-CPH stated objectives already broadly align with Council's existing policies, plans and strategies in terms of greenhouse gas emissions reduction, transitioning to a renewable energy future both in terms of corporate environmental sustainability and supporting its communities.

- 5. Council permits are required for Airbnb (accommodating >5 people) to operate. Due to lack of long term planning, Council rushed to allow a large number of Airbnb in the region (especially Apollo Bay-Forrest-Colac). Consequently, this placed pressure on housing supply and squeezed permanent residents out changing the fabric of local communities. It is not only the businesses' loud voices that should shape the Council decisions. Instead of the Council addressing the deeper issue at hand with long term solutions and owning to their lack of foresight, they declared a crisis!
 - 5.1 Would the Council consider establishing policies to maintain long term balance between economy, livability and social responsibility?

Response from Acting General Manager, Development & Community Services

Short term rental accommodation in our municipality has been occurring for a long time, particularly in coastal towns in the peak holiday period, but has become increasingly popular with the advent of Air B'n'B and other similar ventures. This is a world wide phenomenon and is not particular to Colac Otway Shire. Local authorities across the world are looking at ways in which the adverse impacts of this form of accommodation can be addressed to improve the availability of housing for local workers. Until a few years ago, planning permits were not required to use housing for short term accommodation — most of this accommodation was established during that time and has existing use rights to continue operating that way into the future under State planning laws. Council has a strong commitment to working with the community to explore ways in which housing affordability and availability issues can be addressed.

5.2 Does the Council have data pertaining to actual housing characteristics in these three towns – e.g. long term rentals, short term rentals (airbnb)?

Response from Acting General Manager, Development & Community Services

Council does not have access to date pertaining to housing characteristics in any town within Colac Otway e.g. long term rentals. Council has data relating to the number of properties in each rating categories.

5.3 Why did the Council's "Key and Essential Housing Supply Action Plan" fail to include Birregurra and Forrest?

Response from Acting General Manager, Development & Community Services

The Key & Essential Worker Housing Supply Action Plan focussed on Colac and Apollo Bay as the larger urban centres in the municipality experiencing challenges with housing availability for key workers, but it is recognised that these same issues are also being experienced in the smaller towns.

5.4 What is the status of completion of actions CO3-CO6 in Council's "Key and Essential Housing Supply Action Plan"?

Response from Acting General Manager, Development & Community Services

Council is participating in a project with other Great Ocean Road councils as Stage 2 of the Key and Essential Worker Housing Project to progress actions arising from Stage 1. Of particular relevance to our Shire will be work in that project to develop a model for management of future key worker housing by a community housing trust. Officers are also working with a group in Apollo Bay and other agencies to push for temporary short term accommodation to be made available in Apollo Bay this summer to meet the needs of the peak holiday period, as well as exploring options for longer term accommodation. Council officers are also supporting advocacy efforts to Government for funding support. In Colac there are a range of housing related projects which Council has prioritised to bring on line new housing from greenfield subdivision, including the potential sale and development of land it owns at Bruce Street.

QUESTIONS RECEIVED VERBALLY AT THE MEETING

Any person wishing to participate in public question time was requested to register their intention to do so by contacting the Shire prior to 5:00pm on Monday 20 September 2021. No requests were received.

6 TABLING OF RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS TAKEN ON NOTICE AT PREVIOUS MEETING

Nil

7 PETITIONS / JOINT LETTERS

Nil

8 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Nil

9 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

• Council Meeting held on 25 August 2021.

RESOLUTION

MOVED Cr Stephen Hart, SECONDED Cr Chris Potter

That Council confirm the minutes of the Council Meeting held on 25 August 2021.



Domestic Animal Management Plan - Pre Consultative Report

OFFICER Tony Gullone

GENERAL MANAGER Tony McGann

DIVISION Environment & Infrastructure

ATTACHMENTS 1. Domestic Animal Management Plan CANVA [10.1.1 - 38

pages]

PURPOSE To present the draft Domestic Animal Management Plan

(DAMP) to Council for endorsement for public consultation.

RESOLUTION

MOVED Cr Chris Potter, SECONDED Cr Joe McCracken

That Council:

- Notes that Domestic Animal Management Plan (DAMP) has been prepared to satisfy its obligations under section 68A of Domestic Animals Act 1994;
- Endorses the draft Domestic Animal Management Plan 2021-2025 (refer Attachment 1) for the purpose of public consultation;
- Determines that the public consultation period shall be no less than six-weeks from public notice;
- Provides an opportunity for any person wishing to speak to their written submission at a meeting of the Submissions Committee to be determined; and
- Considers submissions prior to adoption of the final DAMP at a future Council meeting.



Item: 10.2 Erosion Management Overlay Review

OFFICER Sean OKeeffe

GENERAL MANAGER Ian Seuren

DIVISION Development & Community Services

ATTACHMENTS 1. EMO Review Report September 2021 [**10.2.1** - 128 pages]

2. Clause 44 01 Erosion Management Overlay - Parent Clause

[**10.2.2** - 5 pages]

3. DRAFT EMO Schedule - Council briefing pdf [10.2.3 - 3 pages]

PURPOSE To seek Council support to amend the Colac Otway Planning

Scheme to update the Erosion Management Overlay planning

provisions.

RESOLUTION

MOVED Cr Joe McCracken, SECONDED Cr Graham Costin

That Council:

- Notes that the proposed changes to the Erosion Management Overlay are part of a broader strategy being implemented by officers to update the Planning Scheme and remove unnecessary planning permit burden in the development approval process for ratepayers.
- 2. Pursuant to section 8A of the Planning and Environment Act 1987, requests the Minister for Planning to authorise the preparation of the Erosion Management Overlay Amendment to the Colac Otway Planning Scheme.
- Authorises officers to make any necessary minor formatting and administrative corrections to Erosion Management Overlay Amendment documents prior to sending to the Minister for authorisation.
- 4. Authorises officers to exhibit the planning scheme amendment, subject to the Minister's authorisation in paragraph 2.



Key and Essential Worker Housing Crisis

OFFICER Fiona Maw

GENERAL MANAGER Ian Seuren

DIVISION Development & Community Services

ATTACHMENTS

1. ACCA Background - Colac Otway Shire Council 18 August 2021

[**10.3.1** - 2 pages]

PURPOSE To provide an update on actions being taken in responding to

the key and essential worker housing crisis as declared by

Council at its June 2021 Council Meeting.

RESOLUTION

Cr Jamie Bell left the meeting at 4:42pm; returned at 4:43pm.

MOVED Cr Graham Costin, SECONDED Cr Chris Potter

That Council notes the contents of this report.



City Deal Projects - Clause 52.30 'State projects' Planning Approval Pathway

OFFICER	Frank Castles			
GENERAL MANAGER	Tony McGann			
DIVISION	Infrastructure & Environment			
ATTACHMENTS	 Briefing - Attachment A Clause 52.30 - State Projects Planning - City Deals - 20210901 [10.4.1 - 4 pages] Briefing - Attachment B Clause 52.30 - State Projects Planning - City Deals - 20210901 [10.4.2 - 2 pages] Presentation - City Deal Planning Approach - OCM - 20210922 [10.4.3 - 2 pages] Engagement and Communication Structure - COS City Deal Projects [10.4.4 - 35 pages] 			
PURPOSE	To inform Councillors about the Clause 52.30 State Projects planning approach for the City Deal Projects.			

The Chief Executive Officer withdrew this item from the agenda.



Contract 2127 - Construct Only - Morris Access Landslip Remediation

OFFICER Maddy Bisits, Kristy Cochrane

GENERAL MANAGER Tony McGann

DIVISION Environment & Infrastructure

ATTACHMENTS Nil

PURPOSE To approve and award Contract 2127 – Construct Only –

Landslip Rehabilitation, Morris Access, Skenes Creek.

RESOLUTION

MOVED Cr Graham Costin, SECONDED Cr Chris Potter

That Council:

- 1. Awards Contract 2127 Construct Only Landslip Rehabilitation, Morris Access, Skenes Creek, to Deja Eight Pty Ltd at the lump sum price referred to in the confidentially distributed document pertaining to this contract.
- 2. Authorises the Chief Executive Officer to execute the contract documents on behalf of Council.
- 3. Authorises the Chief Executive Officer to perform all roles of the Principal.
- 4. Notes that the successful tenderer and contract price will be listed on Council's website.



Contract 2126 - Concrete Footpath Construction and Repair Services

OFFICER Maddy Bisits, Kristy Cochrane

GENERAL MANAGER Tony McGann

DIVISION Environment & Infrastructure

ATTACHMENTS Nil

PURPOSE To approve and award Contract 2126 – Concrete Footpath

Construction and Repair Services.

RESOLUTION

MOVED Cr Chris Potter, SECONDED Cr Graham Costin

That Council:

- 1. Awards Contract 2126 Concrete Footpath Construction and Repair Services (Panel), for a period of three years with the option of a two x one-year extensions, to the following tenderers at the prices referred to in the confidential attachment to this report:
 - M.W Featherstone & S.L Wilson (Seaview)
 - The Trustee for Melville Family Trust
 - Connect Jobs Pty Ltd
 - Fulton Hogan Industries Pty Ltd
 - Blue Civil & Construction Pty Ltd
 - AWS Services Vic Pty Ltd
 - Langdon Contractors Pty Ltd.
- 2. Authorises the Chief Executive Officer to execute the contracts for 2126 Concrete Footpath Construction and Repair Services (Panel).
- 3. Authorises the Chief Executive to perform all roles of the Principal.
- 4. Notes that unsuccessful tenders will be advised of the outcome of the tender process.



Audit and Risk Committee - Biannual Audit and Risk Report

OFFICER Lyndal McLean

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

OFFICER

Anne Howard

DIVISION Executive

ATTACHMENTS

1. Audit and Risk Committee - Biannual Audit and Risk Report -

September 2021 [10.7.1 - 4 pages]

PURPOSE To receive for information the Colac Otway Shire Audit and

Risk Committee biannual audit and risk report.

RECOMMENDATION

That Council receives for information the Colac Otway Shire Audit and Risk Committee biannual report dated 14 September 2021.

ALTERNATIVE MOTION

MOVED Cr Stephen Hart, SECONDED Cr Graham Costin

That Council:

- 1. Receives for information the Colac Otway Shire Audit and Risk Committee biannual report dated 14 September 2021; and
- 2. Puts on record its appreciation of the Chair, Mike Said for his lengthy service and contribution to the Audit and Risk Committee.



Audit and Risk Committee Minutes - 11 August 2021

OFFICER Lyndal McLean

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

OFFICER

Anne Howard

DIVISION Executive

ATTACHMENTS 1. Audit and Risk Committee - 11 August 2021 - Minutes -

Signed [10.8.1 - 23 pages]

PURPOSE To receive for information the Colac Otway Shire Audit and

Risk Committee minutes dated 11 August 2021.

RESOLUTION

MOVED Cr Stephen Hart, SECONDED Cr Graham Costin

That Council receives for information the Colac Otway Shire Audit and Risk Committee minutes dated 11 August 2021.



S6 Instrument of Delegation – Council to Members of Council Staff

OFFICER Maree Powell

GENERAL MANAGER Errol Lawrence

DIVISION Corporate Services

ATTACHMENTS 1. S 6 Instrument of Delegation - Updates August 2021 [10.9.1 -

9 pages]

2. S 6 Instrument of Delegation - Council to Members of Staff - Attachment For Signing - September 2021 [10.9.2 - 82 pages]

3. Signed S 6 Instrument of Delegation - Council to Council Staff

- 28 June 2021 [**10.9.3** - 83 pages]

PURPOSE Review and update Council's Instrument of Delegation to Members

of Council Staff.

RESOLUTION

MOVED Cr Chris Potter, SECONDED Cr Jamie Bell

That Council in the exercise of the powers conferred by the legislation referred to in the attached Instrument of Delegation:

- Delegates to the members of Council staff holding, acting in or performing the duties of the
 offices or positions referred to in the attached Instrument of Delegation, the powers, duties
 and functions set out in that Instrument, subject to the conditions and limitations specified
 in that Instrument.
- 2. Authorises the use of the common seal in accordance with Colac Otway Shire's Governance Local Law No 4 2020.
- 3. Approves the S6 Instrument of Delegation to come into force immediately upon execution.
- 4. Approves that coming into force of the S6 Instrument of Delegation, the previous S6 Instrument of Delegation from Council to members of Council staff is revoked.
- The duties and functions set out in the Instrument must be performed and the powers set out in the Instrument must be executed, in accordance with any guidelines or policies of Council that may from time to time be adopted.



10.10 Notice of Motion - Christmas Decorations

COUNCILLOR Cr Graham Costin

ATTACHMENTS Nil

MOTION

MOVED Cr Graham Costin, SECONDED Cr Stephen Hart

That Council:

 Recognises the special need this year to support all its communities in celebrating Christmas after lengthy periods of uncertainty, social isolation and economic downturn due to the COVID-19 pandemic and multiple lockdowns.

2. Notes:

- 1.1 It has \$45,200 currently available for Christmas decorations.
- 1.2 The recent Colac community suggestions to erect a substantial Christmas tree in Memorial Square similar to the Apollo Bay foreshore Christmas tree.
- 1.3 The reduced capacity of the Apollo Bay community to fund its foreshore Christmas tree, Collingwood St decorations and celebratory "light-up" event.

3. Commits to:

- 3.1 Investing \$30,000 for purchase and installation of a removable-style Christmas tree in Colac Memorial Square and for Murray St decorations.
- 3.2 Inviting the Colac business community to contribute to the initial cost of the Memorial Square Christmas tree and any associated celebratory events.
- 3.3 Contributing \$15,000 towards the cost of lighting the Apollo Bay foreshore Christmas tree, Collingwood St decorations and celebratory "light-up" event.

LOST 2:5

DIVISION

For the motion: Cr Graham Costin, Cr Stephen Hart

Against the motion: Cr Margaret White, Cr Chris Potter, Cr Jamie Bell, Cr Joe McCracken, Cr Kate Hanson



	item: 10.11	
Report of Inform	al Meetings	of Councillors

OFFICER Lyndal McLean CHIEF EXECUTIVE Anne Howard **OFFICER DIVISION** Executive 1. Informal Meeting of Councillors - Councillor Briefing - 11 **ATTACHMENTS** August 2021 - CB 20210811 [10.11.1 - 2 pages] 2. Informal Meeting of Councillors - Planning Committee Meeting Preparation - 11 August 2021 PCM 202108 [10.11.2 -1 page] 3. Informal Meeting of Councillors - Councillor Briefing - 18 August 2021 - CB 20210818 [10.11.3 - 3 pages] 4. Informal Meeting of Councillors - Colac Regional Saleyards Advisory Committee Meeting 20 Aug 2021 [10.11.4 - 1 page] 5. Informal Meeting of Councillors - Council Preparation Meeting - 25 August 2021 CM 20210825 [10.11.5 - 2 pages] 6. Informal Meeting of Councillors - Councillor Briefing - 1 September 2021 - CB 20210901 [10.11.6 - 2 pages] **PURPOSE** To report the Informal Meetings of Councillors.

REPORTING

The Informal Meetings of Councillors are reported herewith:

•	Councillor Briefing	11 August 2021
•	Planning Meeting Preparation	11 August 2021
•	Councillor Briefing	18 August 2021
•	Colac Livestock Selling Centre Advisory Committee	20 August 2021
•	Council Meeting Preparation	25 August 2021
•	Councillor Briefing	1 September 2021

The Colac Otway Shire Governance Rules does not require a decision.

The	meetina	was	declared	closed	at 6:06nm.
1111	meema	WUSI	UPLIUIPU	LIUSPU	<i>ui o.uonii.</i>

CONFIRMED AND SIGNED at the meeting held on 27 October 2021.